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          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Good morning, and

          3  what is going to happen today is, first of all, let

          4  me thank my colleagues for their patience.  We are

          5  starting a little late, there were two meetings that

          6  had to be done before the Land Use Committee

          7  meeting, and I know a lot of folks were waiting

          8  around.  So, I do appreciate your patience, and we

          9  are going--.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Do not start

         11  the meeting yet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Do not start?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Thank you, I

         14  apologize, I was downstairs in Steering.  I vote aye

         15  on all.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank

         17  you, Madam Chair.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Can I vote as

         19  well?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Councilman.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Let me open it one

         22  more time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  You did not close

         24  it.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  I did not close it?
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          2                 Councilman Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I do the same

          4  apology, I vote aye as well.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Do you have any

          6  questions?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  No, I

          8  actually reviewed the issues earlier.  Thank you

          9  very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Councilman Felder,

         11  anything else? It was rhetorical.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:

         13  (unintelligible)

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I would not be the

         15  one to talk to about that.

         16                 Okay, can we go on?

         17                 Oliver.

         18                 Okay, we are going to open the

         19  meeting of the Land Use Committee so that folks can

         20  vote before we start the billboards hearing.

         21                 Just so everybody knows what is going

         22  to happen here, we are going to have the vote on the

         23  items that are on the agenda today, and then we are

         24  going to have a hearing on billboards.

         25                 If you would like to testify, I
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          2  assume that a lot of folks are here to listen to

          3  what is going on since there is one, two, three,

          4  four, five people to testify, which is fine.

          5                 There will not be a vote on the

          6  billboard legislation today.  It will come before

          7  the Land Use Committee on March 16th, and on March

          8  16th, it will be voted at that point in the Land Use

          9  Committee, and then go to the floor, should it be

         10  lucky enough to be voted out on the 23rd.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 On the agenda today, Intro. Number

         13  423, 20055054LLY, we are going to lay that over

         14  until March 16th.  That is the billboard

         15  legislation.

         16                 20055252PNR, that is Councilman

         17  McMahon's district. It is an application by DSBS,

         18  Department of Small Businesses, requesting the

         19  approval of a lease for the southern portion of

         20  Staten Island Homeport Pier.  It is a private

         21  operator and contract with the U.S. Navy for short-

         22  term use for Homeport.  My understanding is that

         23  Councilman McMahon has worked everything out with

         24  his colleagues in Staten Island, and that is a

         25  motion to approve from the Subcommittee.
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          2                 Council Member Arroyo, C050120ZMX,

          3  that is going to be laid over.  It is the rezoning

          4  in Port Morris in Brooklyn.

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  In the Bronx.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  In the Bronx,

          7  sorry.

          8                 Community Board 9, Kew Gardens, LU

          9  Number 373C050153ZMQ, that is a rezoning in my

         10  district for- to downzone a large portion of Kew

         11  Gardens in order to stop the overdevelopment that is

         12  going on there, and to make the district just a

         13  little more stable.

         14                 LU Number 396, Councilman Yassky's

         15  district, 2004567TCK, that is a motion to file

         16  because it has been withdrawn by the applicant.

         17                 LU Number 303, 307, and 310, Council

         18  Member Boyland, Moskowitz, and Jackson's district,

         19  respectively, are UDAAP's, and Council Member

         20  Quinn's district, LU Number 400, 20045618TCM,

         21  application for a sidewalk cafe on 165 West 4th

         22  Street.  I need discussion.

         23                 Call the roll.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Katz.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Perkins.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Aye on all.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Nelson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Avella.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Baez.

         11                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  She is not

         12  here.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  I thought she was

         14  here.  Barron.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  She is.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Felder.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gioia.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Aye on all.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vann.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gentile.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE:  Aye on all.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Palma.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lanza.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA:  Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Felder.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Aye.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Before we finalize

         16  the vote, if I can just say on behalf of Councilman

         17  Gallagher, who's district parley it is in and myself

         18  for Kew Gardens, Richmond Hill rezoning, I would

         19  like to thank the Subcommittee for the work that

         20  they did in making sure it got through so quickly,

         21  and also the staff for all the hard work they did.

         22  And also the City Planning Commission it was truly

         23  intricate in making sure that it was a very quick

         24  process.

         25                 The committee has been working on it
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          2  for 15 years before we came into office, and they

          3  were really intricate in making sure that it got

          4  through the process quickly.

          5                 Councilman Martinez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 I just want to inform my colleagues

          9  and the members of the Disposition Committee that we

         10  are organizing to have an oversight hearing, an

         11  informal informational hearing, to relate to the

         12  disposition of city properties.

         13                 As you know, I mentioned last month

         14  that the committee was going to get ready to have

         15  this hearing with HPD, and members of the

         16  Administration, because at the Disposition Committee

         17  all we do is vote for the disposition but we are not

         18  informed as to the selection process of developers.

         19  So, that is going to be an interesting hearing, in

         20  which we are going to have information

         21  from HPD.

         22                 So, I want to ask my colleagues and

         23  members of the Committee if they have any questions

         24  that they want to start formulating as for that

         25  hearing.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you, Council

          4  Member Baez would you like to vote in the Land Use

          5  Committee on the items?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  What are we

          7  doing?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Port Morris has

          9  been laid over until the next meeting.  Everything

         10  else.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Baez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         14  Rivera.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  I vote aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands at 17

         17  in the affirmative, none in the negative, and no

         18  abstentions, and remains open.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.

         20                 I would like to ask my colleagues to

         21  stick around, we have billboard legislation.  There

         22  are only five people testifying.

         23                 As you know, the Administration will

         24  come and testify, and everybody else will get three

         25  minutes.  Just so everybody is aware in this room, I
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          2  believe this is the third hearing, at least, on this

          3  legislation.

          4                 The product that we are looking at

          5  today will not be voted on but it is the

          6  accumulation of years of hard work, not only by many

          7  of the council members but negotiations with the

          8  industry.           As is always the case, not

          9  everyone is always happy, which probably means we

         10  hit the right chord, and probably did it right if

         11  everybody is not happy.  But this is legislation

         12  that is particularly geared towards making sure that

         13  on the arterials, the Long Island Expressway, the

         14  Grand Concourse, different areas in the City of New

         15  York are not inundated with billboards that actually

         16  are, right now, illegal.

         17                 The law right now is that you cannot

         18  have a billboard over a certain size that is

         19  advertising and not a business affiliate within 200

         20  feet of an arterial.

         21                 The way we did that, for those of you

         22  that are familiar with this legislation, is we got

         23  rid of the voluntary compliance provision in the

         24  previous legislation that was passed, I think, about

         25  five years ago, and it basically created ways for
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          2  Department of Buildings to actually do enforcement

          3  on this to make sure that they have the tools

          4  required to be able to go out and do enforcement of

          5  this law.

          6                 So, I would like to open up the

          7  hearing on the billboard legislation, and ask the

          8  Department of Buildings' Phyllis Arnold who is

          9  General Counsel, to come up and testify with whoever

         10  else you want to bring.

         11                 Phyllis, always a pleasure to see

         12  you.

         13                 Legislation should be distributed in

         14  front of you. We also sent it to your offices last

         15  week, thank you.

         16                 If I could have some order for the

         17  General Counsel of the Buildings Department.

         18                 Thank you, Phyllis, please.

         19                 MS. ARNOLD:  Good morning, thank you.

         20                 Good morning Chair Katz, and the

         21  members of the committee on Land Use.

         22                 As Chair Katz indicated, I am Phyllis

         23  Arnold.  I am General Counsel to the Department of

         24  Buildings, and I am here today in my third

         25  appearance on this matter to testify with respect to
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          2  Intro. 423- A.

          3                 For the reasons that follow, the

          4  Department supports this bill, with changes that I

          5  will outline in my testimony, which will be brief.

          6                 While the Council and the

          7  Administration have worked over the last several

          8  years to craft approaches to the enforcement

          9  challenges posed by the enactment in 2001 of Local

         10  Law 14, illegal signs have proliferated.

         11                 The Department has been hamstrung in

         12  its efforts to prosecute violations of code and

         13  zoning due to the availability of what we have come

         14  to call "the VCP defense"- the argument that, but

         15  for the Department's failure to implement the

         16  voluntary compliance plan. The sign in question

         17  would be immunized from the issuance of all but

         18  safety- related violations.

         19                 As you know, we ran into

         20  insurmountable obstacles when we began rulemaking to

         21  implement Local Law 14, including its VCP

         22  provisions, and as a result, only the repeal of VCP,

         23  as proposed in this Intro. Will enable the

         24  Department to undertake any meaningful enforcement.

         25  That is the good news.
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          2                 The bad news is that Intro. 423- A

          3  introduces a cure period for outdooor advertising

          4  companies to correct infractions and thus to avoid

          5  the revocation of their registration for having

          6  violated or admitted to violations three times in

          7  three years.

          8                 By sanctioning this cat- and- mouse

          9  game of violation correction- violation, this

         10  changes lets in the back door what the original

         11  Intro. 423 attempted to shut down up front.  It

         12  will, I am afraid, render our enforcement elusive.

         13                 When coupled with the allowance that

         14  outdoor advertising companies may exhaust their

         15  appeals before the violation even counts, the

         16  Department can anticipate little short of perpetual

         17  wheel- spinning.

         18                 We would thus urge this Committee to

         19  eliminate these modifications and revert to the

         20  original enforcement provisions proposed in Intro.

         21  423.

         22                 The Department would like to see

         23  three additional changes.

         24                 The first addresses the proximity

         25  measurement in relation the arterial highways.  The
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          2  intent of the bill is to capture in the regulated

          3  universe signs up to their maximum size within

          4  proximity of the arterials.  We calculate that that

          5  occurs at 900 linear feet from the highway rather

          6  than 700.

          7                 Second, we would like the Committee

          8  to include in 26- 260(b) the authority for the

          9  Department to conduct registration by electronic

         10  means, and finally, we believe our rules will

         11  address any uncertainties in the certification

         12  requirements such that the bill need not prescribe

         13  the option of a written Department opinion on the

         14  compliance question.

         15                 Intro. 423- A otherwise proposes

         16  necessary changes to the Code to maximize our likely

         17  success in enforcement efforts. Like the original

         18  version, the bill would narrow, at this time, the

         19  scope of outdoor advertising control signs that are

         20  subject to regulation to those located in areas

         21  proximate to the arterials and parks, areas where

         22  illegal signage is greatest.  It would make explicit

         23  the Commissioner's authority to settle revocation

         24  proceedings so as to require removal of sign

         25  structures, propose definitions that more accurately
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          2  capture outdoor advertising companies and their

          3  related entities, and clarify that an entity is

          4  engaged in outdoor advertising business when it

          5  brokers space on signs to others for advertising

          6  purposes, regardless of how zoning might classify

          7  the sign copy.

          8                 Finally, it would introduce new

          9  necessary flexibility in the form of security we

         10  accept.

         11                 We urge the Committee to pass Intro.

         12  423- A with the changes we have outlined, and

         13  thereby give the City some reasonable tools to

         14  combat the proliferation of illegal billboards along

         15  the arterials.

         16                 As framed, the bill is not a cure-

         17  all, it would not necessarily bring sign structures

         18  down, and it will not make illegal signage disappear

         19  overnight.

         20                 What it would do is enable us to more

         21  effectively prosecute individual violations of

         22  zoning's arterial highway rules and, ultimately,

         23  provide a sanction in the form of potential

         24  franchise disqualification that we believe should

         25  deter those that subvert the prohibitions while
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          2  appearing to be law abiding.

          3                 I will be happy to take your

          4  questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you,

          6  Phyllis, and also for the work that your department

          7  has been doing with the Land Use Committee on this.

          8  I thank you for all of the work that you have, I

          9  think, been accomplishing.

         10                 So, basically the Administration,

         11  since we have been working with them, approves of

         12  the legislation but, you think the 900 feet is

         13  better than 700 feet to register because of the

         14  site, right, is that what it is?

         15                 You think that you can see it with

         16  the 900 feet, so you backtracked your way from the

         17  square footage.

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  We backtracked our way

         19  to- the maximum size of the sign in an M- district,

         20  which surrounds these arterials, is 1,200 square

         21  feet.  So, we backtracked to 900 in order to finally

         22  reach that maximum size and, I mean, the way we did

         23  it literally was calculating that at 200 feet out

         24  you can be- at 200 feet linear, you can be a 500

         25  foot sign, so, we simply say, at 600 you can be 300,

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  at 300 feet out you can be a 600 foot sign, at 400

          3  you are a seven, and by the time we reach the max of

          4  12, we are at a linear of 900 feet.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  And the

          6  registration by electronic means, I presume is just

          7  a way to make it easier for the industry, and so

          8  there is less paper involved and it is quicker?

          9                 MS. ARNOLD:  You bet.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Okay.  The issue

         11  has come up with the industry about signs that were

         12  put up as advertising signs before 1979.

         13                 The Buildings Department, I know

         14  through discussions, is making provisions so that is

         15  there is no documentation in the City Hall records,

         16  which I know people find very hard to believe that

         17  there may not be, that there are ways that they can

         18  prove that their signs were legal before 1979.

         19                 Can you just discuss that for a

         20  minute?

         21                 MS. ARNOLD:  Sure, we expect to

         22  provide a language section in our rules for the

         23  signs that are claimed to be non conforming lawful

         24  advertising signs in which they will come to us for

         25  a determination before they have to declare it, so,
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          2  we will give some guidelines as to the type of

          3  evidence we will be willing to accept.

          4                 We recognize there is not always

          5  going to be a piece of paper in the City's records

          6  to reflect a permit in 1948, and we will look at the

          7  evidence and give people a determination on this as

          8  expeditiously as we can.  In the interim as we

          9  currently conceive the rules, the sign can stay up.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  So, just as a

         11  final question before I turn it over to any of my

         12  colleagues who might have a question as well, this

         13  legislation was never meant to issue violations

         14  against those in the industry that are abiding by

         15  the law.

         16                 MS. ARNOLD:  No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:   So basically, we

         18  require the company to register and then register

         19  all of its inventory, and if their signs are legal,

         20  ie; business affiliate signs within 200 feet and all

         21  of that, or otherwise comply with zoning, then they

         22  will not be even effected by this, except for the

         23  registration requirement, correct?

         24                 MS. ARNOLD:  That is true.  The

         25  registration at this time, the inventory of signs
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          2  that we will be asking for will be just the arterial

          3  inventory but, yes, you are right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Okay, any of my

          5  colleagues?

          6                 Councilman Gioia, then Councilman

          7  Barron.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just wanted

          9  to ask you more about he VCP program, the Voluntary

         10  Compliance Program.

         11                 So, you are saying that you do not

         12  want the industry to have a chance to even comply

         13  and, because the only infractions you could impose

         14  upon them are safety related infractions, and it

         15  would, you are saying it would tie you up, so they

         16  should not even have a chance to try to comply?

         17                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think we would have

         18  loved it, frankly.  As originally conceived, it was

         19  the, one of the main elements of Local Law 14, you

         20  know we thought it was going to be a magic bullet to

         21  give the industry three years of violation- free

         22  advertising on signs that may well be illegal, in

         23  exchange for their commitment to take them down at

         24  the end of that, or on a schedule within that three

         25  years.
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          2                 Frankly, it was our lesson to learn

          3  that that was not going to work out.  The economics

          4  of it just did not work out for the industry, it was

          5  not worth it to them to take the signs down.

          6                 So, I think our premise was faulty.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Are you

          8  saying that that kind of like hampered you from

          9  doing what you feel needs to be done?   And, if it

         10  is still in there, then that would give them an out

         11  and ways around?

         12                 MS. ARNOLD:  What has happened in

         13  this period since Local Law 14 was passed, is that

         14  this VCP defense that I eluded to, has given outdoor

         15  advertising companies the ability to argue as

         16  follows;  We want to write them a violation because

         17  we think they are in the arterials, they violate

         18  zoning, and they say, "but for your failure,

         19  Department of Buildings, to implement this VCP

         20  Program, which I would have joined, and I would have

         21  put my sign into in order to immunize it, I would be

         22  immunized and therefore, it is your failure

         23  Department that is depriving me or the ability to be

         24  here."  And I think that is a fair critique.  We

         25  felt it was going to be a viable defense to the
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          2  issuance of violations, and therefore, we have

          3  essentially been unable to prosecute on an

          4  individualized basis any of the post- 2001

          5  installations that are admittedly illegal.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  How valid is

          7  their critique of that program, and its inability to

          8  have them immunized from illegal signage?

          9                 MS. ARNOLD:  You mean their critique

         10  of the VCP as --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Right.

         12                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think we heard them

         13  loud and clear in the rulemaking proceedings.

         14                 I suggest that they industry may be

         15  in a better position to respond in more detail to

         16  your question Councilmember, than the Department.  I

         17  think we took their comments to heart, and

         18  understood that they were not going to be

         19  participating.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:   Yes, and

         22  Councilman Barron, I apologize.  I probably should

         23  have discussed it a little more fully.

         24                 The Voluntary Compliance Provision

         25  has been law since Walter McCaffrey and June Eisland
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          2  passed it in 2001, and the reason we are here today

          3  is because of the utter failure of, not only the

          4  industry to participate in it, but also then, if

          5  nobody is participating in it, the Buildings

          6  Department was not able to create the rules and

          7  regulations for it, and that is really what brought

          8  us to the table three years ago, was that it was

          9  clear that it just was not working.  I should have

         10  discussed it, I am sorry.

         11                 Councilman Gioia.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you,

         13  Madam Chair.

         14                 I thank you very much for your

         15  testimony and coming down here today.

         16                 I have got a few questions, and

         17  please forgive me if they, I hate to use the

         18  word`dumb' questions, but I am sorry if they come

         19  across that way.  They are very simple questions.

         20                 I am just trying to wrap my head

         21  around this, not just the failure of the previous

         22  law but just, I am trying to get to what we are

         23  really trying to accomplish- the end goal here.

         24                 I thought about this over the

         25  weekend, I was out of town and I got at the airport
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          2  in Los Angles, and I was driving to the hotel and I

          3  saw these signs up, and I did not get a tour book

          4  before I went to L.A., I did not get on the Internet

          5  before I went to L.A., but there was a sign that

          6  said, "Come to the Getty Museum and see the--", you

          7  see how much it made an impact on me, I cannot even

          8  remember what it said.  I think it was John Louis

          9  David (phonetic) Exhibition, and so I did  I had a

         10  few minutes to spare, and I went and checked out the

         11  Getty.  I would not have if I did not see the sign.

         12                 So, I think we can all agree that

         13  some of these signs actually can be good for the

         14  City, in that they are just exactly what they are

         15  intend to be, an advertisement, and they make

         16  tourists go to different places and things like

         17  that.

         18                 So of course, all of us, particularly

         19  I think, well I should say every representative, and

         20  I know the ones who are in my neck of the woods in

         21  Queens, get complaints a lot about quality of life.

         22  All of us need to be very concerned about protecting

         23  peoples quality of life, and no one's block should

         24  look like Times Square, and so, somewhere in between

         25  being a real service to the City, and helping

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  business owners run their legal business, and

          3  actually providing a service and giving information

          4  to people who are visiting, and on the other

          5  extreme, turning your private, residential block

          6  into Times Square, there is a happy medium, I

          7  assume, somewhere.  So, I say all of that to preface

          8  my question which is what is the goal here?

          9                 In your view, what do we want New

         10  York City to look like?

         11                 MS. ARNOLD:  Council Member Gioia, it

         12  is a fair question, and I do not mean to sound

         13  disrespectful of it in the answer I am about to give

         14  you.

         15                 But in all fairness, this bill is not

         16  about that set of issues.  The issues you are

         17  raising, I think, are planning issues, they are

         18  zoning issues, they are the questions that are

         19  really imbedded in the design of the underlying

         20  zoning provisions that regulate signage, in and

         21  around the arterials.

         22                 I think we could have an interesting

         23  conversation about that, and I think the folks over

         24  at the Planning Commission do with us, and with

         25  others over what the arterials ought to look like,
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          2  and whether the federal highway restrictions from

          3  the 60's- what different ways there are for

          4  implementing those restrictions, and therefore sort

          5  of, guaranteeing the flow of federal highway money.

          6                 This bill is not about those

          7  questions though.

          8                 This bill assumes that whatever the

          9  zoning provides, it provides, and this is really

         10  about giving the Department of Buildings the tools

         11  to enforce what is independently established as City

         12  policy in the zoning resolution.

         13                 So, I think the goals of this bill,

         14  in some ways, are much more modest.  They are really

         15  about taking the status quo of the planning grid,

         16  and figuring out how to make it appear in reality

         17  the way it appears on the drawing board.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  It reminds me

         19  of the great Bobby Kennedy line,`some people see

         20  things as they are, and ask why- some people see

         21  things as they should be, and ask, why not?'       I

         22  guess I am of the mind that we ought to be beginning

         23  a dialog with`how should things be, and then ask,

         24  why not?', and then govern towards that goal.

         25                 In other words, I mean it is not so
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          2  different then in business, and in business you

          3  say,`hey, we want to be- here is where we want to

          4  be, here are the metric milestones along the way,

          5  and here is our plan how to get there.'  And so, I

          6  guess, and I am not criticizing the bill or your

          7  answer, in that I recognize that the intent is more

          8  modest than the broader goal I set out, but I cannot

          9  help but think that is a conversation we ought to

         10  have both here today, and in smaller meetings.

         11  Because I do represent, I guess I represent the

         12  Midtown Tunnel, the Midtown Tunnel does not vote as

         13  far as I know, but I do represent the area where the

         14  Midtown Tunnel is, and where the Long Island

         15  Expressway goes into it.  So, I have a lot of

         16  billboards, and as I said, I do think that they do

         17  serve a pretty good purpose, and I imagine, I do not

         18  have the numbers, but I imagine there is a pretty

         19  good economic multiplier from not only the small

         20  businesses but also the tourists that it does

         21  generate, and I think when we look at the economic

         22  future of this city, tourism is one of the, really

         23  one of the industries we need to foster, and I think

         24  that these help with that.

         25                 So, I think as we strike the balance
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          2  between signs that are helpful and good for New York

          3  City, and destroying somebody's quality of life, we

          4  need to begin with the end in mind and everything we

          5  do ought to be in that framework, I suggest.

          6                 But thank you very much for coming

          7  down today.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you

          9  councilman.

         10                 Councilman Nelson.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I see things

         12  that are not, and I ask,`why not'?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  You are going

         14  towards that one?  Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  So, it is not

         16  just uglification (SIC) of the City, I guess.  It is

         17  a safety issue.

         18                 Is that what the Administration's

         19  goal really is? Safety on the highways?

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  It is an aesthetics and

         21  safety issue, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  And

         23  aesthetics as well.  Is there any- the results- are

         24  there any action reports that are kept anecdotally

         25  or hopefully, totally fully, that people said or
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          2  would admit that they saw a sign and that is why

          3  they swerved into another car or ran off the road?

          4  Because we all know you cannot use a cell phone,

          5  except for hands- free at the moment, and you cannot

          6  blow your hair, although all these things happen on

          7  the roads across the country, the FAX transmissions,

          8  and so on.

          9                 Do we have any evidence of the

         10  causing of accidents from people looking at a huge

         11  sign, and getting absorbed with it, and loosing

         12  control?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  We may well, but the

         14  Department of Buildings does not.  It would not be,

         15  sort of, within our venue to collect it, to be aware

         16  of it.  Again, it seems to me the question you are

         17  posing is really about the underlying zoning

         18  provision and its purpose, and the degree of`fit'

         19  between the means and the ends, and for that really

         20  I can just refer you to the Department of City

         21  Planning with whom I am sure this conversation will

         22  continue.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Yes, but

         24  beyond the zoning part of it, I think the most

         25  critical part of this is really the safety issue,
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          2  you know, people getting killed on the road, and I

          3  am not suggesting that they do but the fact is that

          4  I do not know, and I do not know if anybody knows

          5  really, unless they compile the data to see if there

          6  is a number of accidents caused because of, I mean I

          7  have been caught up in a sign, and I see this

          8  vehicle or whatever it is, and sometimes you want to

          9  read a little bit more, and just taking your eyes

         10  off the road, so, the only way I would really be

         11  against this because I believe in advertising, I

         12  believe in small business but if it was only a

         13  dangerous situation.

         14                 Just as I said, to coin a word the

         15  uglification of the highways, that does not concern

         16  me quite as much.  So, I think really, if you can

         17  try to garner this information from highway patrol,

         18  or NYPD, or whatever it is, I think that would be a

         19  forceful argument.  It would certainly get me

         20  convinced that the cause is leaning towards you.

         21                 All right, thank you, thank you,

         22  Madam Chairwoman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Before I call on

         24  Councilman Comrie next, I just want to clarify one

         25  or two things.
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          2                 First of all, the conversation that

          3  Councilman Gioia brought up is a great discussion,

          4  and it is one that is ongoing with City Planning.

          5                 We are one of the few cities in the

          6  United States that actually zone this way for signs.

          7    Most cities do it with size elimination, and

          8  zoning areas, and they are discussions that are

          9  ongoing with City Planning.

         10                 Right now, the only thing this

         11  legislation, however, does is deal with the

         12  enforcement issue of the law as it stands today.

         13                 A lot of the signs that are up by the

         14  L.I.E., by Grand Concourse, by different arterials

         15  in the City of New York are already not legal, and

         16  so what- because of the Voluntary Compliance

         17  Provision, it was extremely difficult for the

         18  Buildings Department to enforce what was already not

         19  supposed to be there, and so, while we are having

         20  the discussion by City Planning, which I think is

         21  one that we need to have, this will, at least, allow

         22  the Buildings Department to enforce where they have

         23  never been able to enforce, and I think that that is

         24  a real problem.

         25                 When you have laws on the books that
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          2  you are not able to enforce because the City Council

          3  had created legislation that just did not work- I do

          4  think it is incumbent upon us to really admit that,

          5  and try to figure out a way to allow the

          6  enforcement.

          7                 I have a question for you Phyllis.

          8                 Do you have, off the top of your

          9  head, how many signs are not legally there on the

         10  L.I.E.?  Like the percentage of signs either that do

         11  not have a permit, or that did a`bait and switch'

         12  with the business affiliate?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, we do not have those

         14  numbers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I have seen them

         16  before, they are quite large.  But if you could

         17  maybe just get that to the Committee at some point,

         18  that would be very helpful.

         19                 MS. ARNOLD:  Sure, we will get you

         20  what we have got.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Councilman Comrie.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  That was my

         23  question, Madam Chair but that is okay.

         24                 Just in that context, what is- I am

         25  going to have to ditto what the eloquent words of
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          2  our Councilman Gioia and Nelson have said- you know,

          3  what are we actually trying to do here?

          4                 I will put it in this phase, my

          5  understanding is that the illegality was created due

          6  to the inability of the Buildings Department to make

          7  determinations at one point, and actually, all of

          8  the signs that were put up were put up with Building

          9  Department permits, one way or the other, and that-

         10  if you want to talk about bait and switch and

         11  original usage for permitting and all of that- all

         12  those issues came up later but my understanding is

         13  that, not that every sign that was put up had a

         14  Buildings Department permit, there were no signs

         15  along the arterials that were put up that were

         16  totally without some kind of permit at one point or

         17  the other?

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think there are two

         19  things that have happened historically.

         20                 One is that certainly signs are up

         21  without permits, no permits at all.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  There are

         23  some signs that are up?

         24                 MS. ARNOLD:  No question.  I will get

         25  you numbers that we have in terms of what we have
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          2  looked at on complaints, but there is no doubt about

          3  that.

          4                 The more common occurrence in the

          5  years just prior to enactment of Local Law 14, and

          6  in some cases after, has been for a sign to come in

          7  for a non- advertising permit, and in some cases to

          8  install a non- advertising sign.  It happened in my

          9  neighborhood where a concrete manufacturer put up a

         10  pole sign.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, a

         12  permit sign.

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  A permitted pole sign

         14  for concrete manufacturing with its name on it, and

         15  a month later it was Honda, and a month after that

         16  it was another product.

         17                 So, that has been the practice that

         18  has resulted in a really dramatic proliferation over

         19  the last few years.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Do you have-

         21  and we have never gotten that breakdown, just to

         22  supplement what Council Member Katz says.  This

         23  committee has never seen the breakdown on premise

         24  signs that were converted, or signs that were

         25  totally illegal from the beginning, and also
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          2  clearly, also what can be done and how can this

          3  process be ameliorated?

          4                 Is it possible for these illegal

          5  signs to become legal?

          6                 Is there no breakdown on that or

          7  these illegal signs that were all- say I am focusing

          8  on the arterials now, not the on premise signs, that

          9  the arterial signs that were put up that are

         10  considered to be illegal, is there a process to make

         11  them legal or do they physically have to come down

         12  at this point?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  The zoning provisions

         14  would allow non advertising signs, assuming the size

         15  is appropriate and there is no elimination.

         16                 In terms of the nature of the copy,

         17  all the have to do is change the copy back to what

         18  category it was when the sign was permitted, which

         19  is non- advertising.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  A non-

         21  advertising sign would be what exactly?

         22                 I am not- you mean like a public

         23  service or something?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Do you mean a

         25  business affiliate sign?
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          2                 MS. ARNOLD:  It is one of two things.

          3

          4                 Either a business accessory sign,

          5  like Joe's Pizza puts up a Joe's Pizza sign, or a

          6  non- commercial copy, may well be Council Member

          7  Gioia's Museum, depending on whether that is a not

          8  for- profit museum.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, so

         10  there is a process that is being done to delineate

         11  that for the owners at this point?

         12                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think the owners know

         13  that quite well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  The owners

         15  know that quite well.

         16                 Okay but also, it bothers me the

         17  economics- that we are throwing away money.  That

         18  has been my overall problem at all, that we are

         19  throwing away revenue to the City.

         20                 Have you gotten the level of

         21  complaints about the signage that you have had

         22  before?

         23                 MS. ARNOLD:  I can provide those

         24  numbers to you, Council member.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And you are
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          2  still getting regular complaints about signage from

          3  people?

          4                 MS. ARNOLD:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Because we

          6  have never- it is difficult to have a belief in

          7  making a change when I have not seen any to date,

          8  complaints or e- mails to my office about signage

          9  from anyone.  I may be a little behind in my e-

         10  mail, because if you skip three days you wind up

         11  with a thousand e- mails in our system, but I did

         12  not yet since I have been elected, I have not seen

         13  anyone that have come to me from any of the affected

         14  areas that have said that they have had a problem

         15  with signage.

         16                 So, it boggles me why this is such an

         17  issue, where we want to throw away dollars and jobs,

         18  and economic development, and revenue for the City

         19  when we are desperate for revenue.  It bothers me

         20  that we are not coming up with some kind of

         21  opportunity to either give these owners, even if

         22  they are doing `on- premise' signs and conversions-

         23  how do we throw away revenue and what is the

         24  Department doing or what are we doing?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I do not know what
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          2  the revenue is.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I know it is

          4  not part of the legislation.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  No, but I do not

          6  know what revenue it is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  The income

          8  from the jobs that are generated, which is mostly

          9  union jobs from the people that are putting up the

         10  signs.  The income that is generated from, even on-

         11  premise owners that would allow them to be able to

         12  either pay less rent for their premis, or if they

         13  derive an income to feed their families, whatever it

         14  is.  That is City tax dollars that come into the

         15  City.

         16                 I think that we are throwing away

         17  revenue on this issue, and an opportunity where we,

         18  frankly, need revenue.

         19                 We are looking at a $3 billion budget

         20  deficit next year, and the longer deficits overall,

         21  and we are throwing away city tax revenue without

         22  giving people an opportunity to try and make some

         23  restitution, or come up with alternative plans, and

         24  that bothers me.  I mean, if I felt the pressure

         25  from the community or from the areas that say that
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          2  we have to take these signs down, but frankly, when

          3  I have been to other communities and other

          4  countries, signage is more profound than everywhere

          5  other than New York City. Are those signs outside of

          6  federal guidelines that we are talking about here,

          7  the ones that you want to take down?

          8                 MS. ARNOLD:  The ones that are

          9  illegal under zoning are problems in terms of the

         10  federal guidelines that comes through New York

         11  State, yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Uncorrectable

         13  problems, or is there something that could be done?

         14                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, you could always

         15  take a sign down, or correct its copy but our zoning

         16  has been accepted by New York State on behalf of the

         17  feds as an adequate local control for effectuation

         18  of federal policy on this.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  But if we

         20  wanted to say, do proliferation of five times more

         21  of the signs because we thought there was an

         22  economic benefit, we could write it that it would

         23  satisfy state and federal regulations?

         24                 MS. ARNOLD:  I think we would need to

         25  vet that with the state and federal authorities.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, because

          3  I was in Albany a couple of weeks ago, and I saw a

          4  proliferation of signs there on the highways that I

          5  had not seen before, so, I am just trying to

          6  understand what their guidelines are, and also I

          7  understand this bill wants to take signs down.

          8                 I have yet to hear from the

          9  Department what they want to do to try and help

         10  continue the industry.  And my other problem is

         11  while I like the- I have no problems with the

         12  Buildings Department commissioner, do you have the

         13  manpower to do all of

         14  this- all of the hearings that it would take to do

         15  these revocation proceedings, and to have the

         16  definitions that would more accurately capture these

         17  outdoor advertising companies and their related

         18  entities?

         19                 MS. ARNOLD:  We think we do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  And how many

         21  hearings do you have at this point?

         22                 Have you had any hearings on it, or

         23  because of the voluntary compliance you do not do

         24  hearings anymore?

         25                 MS. ARNOLD:  We have been virtually
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          2  stopped in our tracks since 2001.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, but you

          4  are going to get us that statistical information

          5  before we get to our next hearing, and is the

          6  Buildings Department working on any alternate

          7  opportunities for people to come up with different

          8  types of advertising schemes that would be amenable,

          9  where they could still derive an income from those

         10  signs that would be illegal?

         11                 MS. ARNOLD:  Again, I think that is

         12  an issue that is really an urban planning question

         13  that is part of the discussion with City Planning.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, so you

         15  just enforce the rules, you are not working on

         16  rules, primarily.

         17                 All right, I think I am done.

         18                 I want to thank you for coming, and I

         19  do not mean to keep berating you.  I just really

         20  have a problem with throwing away income, and I am

         21  not seeing the wealth of complaints that really

         22  justifies ruining people's livelihoods to some

         23  degree.

         24                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Council Member
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          2  Rivera, did you, I did not know if you had your hand

          3  up.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Yes, thank

          5  you very much, Madam Chair.

          6                 First and foremost, I want to thank

          7  you for coming down here to City Hall.  I just have

          8  a question.

          9                 This piece of legislation, how would

         10  it affect Times Square and the neon lights, that a

         11  lot of people would say are more distracting than

         12  the billboards?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  It would not.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  It would not

         15  affect it?

         16                 MS. ARNOLD:  To the extent this bill

         17  focuses the enforcement, at least at this time, on

         18  the zoning provisions.             There are two

         19  reasons.

         20                 It focuses the enforcement on the

         21  arterial zoning provisions, and Times Square is

         22  outside those parameters.

         23                 And second, the zoning in Times

         24  Square is unique in what it allows in the way of

         25  signage.  It is expressly designed to permit, and
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          2  indeed require, the kind of garish, boisterous

          3  signage that we would find objectionable elsewhere.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  So, are we

          5  going after this more towards going after the

          6  illegal signage that is being put up, or more

          7  towards the safety side of it, protecting the

          8  driver?

          9                 Are we going more towards the fact

         10  that we are trying to rectify the situation with

         11  illegal signage, or are we looking more at the

         12  safety component of it?

         13                 MS. ARNOLD:  It is really a set of

         14  tools to address the illegalities.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  And we do not

         16  have a study that has been presented to us that

         17  identifies where these illegal signages are posted,

         18  and how many there are within each borough, and the

         19  City of New York, right?  We do not have any--?

         20                 MS. ARNOLD:  The Department does not-

         21  my guess is you might pose that question to industry

         22  because they may well have some more information

         23  than we do right now.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  So how do we

         25  fully address it if we do not know where exactly
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          2  they are, or do not know how many there are out

          3  there?

          4                 Even if we do pass this legislation,

          5  how do we actually go out there and enforce?

          6                 MS. ARNOLD:  We will go out on

          7  complaints and address- what this will enable us to

          8  do is go case by case, on complaints or otherwise

          9  and make individualized determinations as to whether

         10  a sign is legal, and if it is illegal, to take

         11  action.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Now, is there

         13  any major companies that do the signages that are

         14  presently illegal?

         15                 I mean, is that the case, or is it

         16  that more small time companies that are doing it may

         17  not know the process?

         18                 MS. ARNOLD:  Again, I would suggest

         19  that you may find a better answer to that question

         20  if you pose it to some of the industry witnesses.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Because, then

         22  my question would be what happens if the 2012

         23  Olympics do come to the City of New York, and there

         24  is an agreement with the sponsors for advertising

         25  within the City of New York, how would that affect
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          2  if we have some of the big shops, you know, Clear

          3  Channel, Viacom, and Media Mogul that have a

          4  substantial amount of billboards all over the place,

          5  how would that effect the negotiations with the

          6  sponsors in terms of advertising?

          7                 We would not know that answer?

          8                 MS. ARNOLD:  No, not at this time.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Okay.  I just

         10  think that we should- these are obviously big

         11  questions that we have forward that we would want

         12  answers to?

         13                 I am pretty sure my colleagues will

         14  want to know how this would affect the 2012

         15  Olympics, how it would affect different safety

         16  issues, and pretty much just to know how many sites

         17  are out there that are illegal, and where can we

         18  identify them, and how we can handle the situation,

         19  okay?

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I am just going to

         22  make a few comments if I can before all my

         23  colleagues go.

         24                 I know Councilman McMahon- how do you

         25  vote on the Subcommittee and the Land Use?

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you,

          3  Madam Chairwoman.

          4                 I vote aye on all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.

          6                 Number one; the Director of 2012,

          7  Director of Operations of 2012, called us and said

          8  they have no objection to this legislation, number

          9  one.

         10                 Number two; I once again want to make

         11  it clear to my colleagues, and really to the

         12  industry that is here.  This is meant to affect

         13  signs that are now up illegally.  They are up

         14  without a permit.  They are up as business

         15  affiliates, and they have switched to advertising.

         16  They are now up in a way that has not been approved

         17  by the City of New York, and legislation that we

         18  have passed.

         19                 Number one, number two; the chance

         20  that folks had in doing this was to comply with the

         21  Voluntary Compliance Provision. That was the whole

         22  purpose of that was so that we could get work with

         23  they industry to make sure that every chance was

         24  given in order for the City and the industry to work

         25  together, that is number two.
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          2                 Number three; if we do not have a

          3  valid enforcement provision about billboards, we

          4  risk, and the only reason we have not done it is

          5  pure luck, we risk loosing speaking of revenues,

          6  federal transportation money should the state rule

          7  that we do not have a valid enforcement procedure in

          8  place, and right now, we really do not.

          9                 So, I just wanted to sort of clarify

         10  that, but I do think though that maybe we can set up

         11  a meeting with the members that are interested to

         12  talk also about maybe, the legislation, okay?  So

         13  that way we get everyone on the same- at least

         14  knowing the same issues, and answering questions

         15  hopefully.

         16                 Phyllis, thank you very much.

         17                 There are only four more folks

         18  testifying.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Madam Chair,

         20  I just want to thank Ms. Arnold.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Go ahead.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  She is an

         23  excellent Counsel, and she has done a lot of yeoman

         24  work on the issue.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So while I

          3  may nag her a lot, I appreciate her insight.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  And we all do,

          6  yes, and thanks for your questions because it shows

          7  what we need to focus on too, for information.

          8                 There are only four more folks

          9  testifying that I am going to call up in panels for

         10  three minutes each because, number one, this is our

         11  third hearing, and number two, I have met with

         12  probably everyone, God knows how many times.  So I

         13  think that three minutes each is fine.

         14                 The first panel will be Tim Stauning,

         15  Scott Goldsmith, and Paul Collins in opposition, and

         16  then after it will be Paul Whitby in favor.

         17                 Sergeant- At- Arms please do three

         18  minutes, if you can for each one.

         19                 I appreciate seeing you gentlemen

         20  once again.  I know some of you travel from far away

         21  to be here, and I thank you for your time.

         22                 Who wants to start, Scott?

         23                 MR. GOLDSMITH:  Sure, thank you.

         24                 Good morning Chair Katz.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Sergeant- At-
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          2  Arms, it is three minutes please, not two, although

          3  you know, if you want to take less time you can.

          4                 MR. GOLDSMITH:  I will be quick I am

          5  sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thanks.

          7                 MR. GOLDSMITH:  Thank you for giving

          8  us an opportunity to testify again this morning.

          9                 At a time when the city needs to

         10  conserve its resources, needs to find untapped

         11  sources of revenue, we believe that this legislation

         12  in its current form misses a golden opportunity to

         13  achieve those goals.

         14                 As you know, the industry put forth

         15  what we thought was a very reasonable proposal that

         16  would have resulted in the removal of a significant

         17  number of signs from the arterial highways.  In fact

         18  we believe, more than half of the suspect signs

         19  would have come down, and we had commitments from 95

         20  percent of the industry.

         21                 That plan would have also avoided a

         22  sign by sign determination, which is what this

         23  legislation ends up, I believe that that is what

         24  Phyllis Arnold referred to is that each sign that is

         25  what the City considers to be suspect, that get
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          2  registered as an accessory business site, has the

          3  ability to be made into a compliant sign by proving

          4  that it was 1979.  That will result in an individual

          5  determination made sign, which is something that the

          6  industry wanted to avoid, and I thought the City

          7  would want to avoid as well because it really is

          8  quite a waste of resources.

          9                 The other thing is that the City,

         10  frankly, could have benefitted from these signs.

         11                 Councilman Comrie, to your question

         12  about revenue, part of the proposal, although it was

         13  not officially put forth, would have been a way to

         14  acquire dollars from actual advertising revenue from

         15  the industry to the City.  A number of other

         16  municipalities in the United States take advantage

         17  of signs on their property or on private property

         18  with licensing fees, and I think the City could have

         19  very much taken part in that.

         20                 The real problem with this

         21  legislation, frankly, is it does not really achieve

         22  what its intended goal is.

         23                 We believe that the signs that are

         24  legally permitted at its accessory business signs

         25  will remain up, while we agree with the
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          2  Administration and with the staff that signs that

          3  are being used for an accessory purpose with

          4  advertising copy, may come down because we are using

          5  them illegally.

          6                 That being said, we do not believe

          7  there is any provision in the law that would allow

          8  the actual sticks to come down, so if the intent is

          9  to actually take down signs and reduce the number of

         10  signs on arterial highways, we believe that that

         11  will not happen.

         12                 This industry, contrary to popular

         13  belief actually welcomes regulation.  Good outdoor

         14  companies benefit from regulation because it levels

         15  the playing field, and while I agree that there are

         16  some signs out there with no permits on the arterial

         17  highways, the majority of those signs actually do

         18  have permits. While they may be accessory, they

         19  signs are permitted and legal.

         20                 So, we urge you to revisit this

         21  issue.  We know that this has been going on for

         22  quite some time.

         23                 That being said, we believe the

         24  legislation as drafted, frankly, does not address

         25  what its intent is.  While I agree it does give the
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          2  ability to enforce, the enforcement is just going to

          3  be a cat and mouse game, for lack of a better word

          4  because there is going to be the individual

          5  determination of each sign.

          6                 One last quick note, we do ask you

          7  respectfully, that if you do decide to pass with

          8  legislation when you vote, we would regress that, as

          9  we did at the last hearing, that you postpone the

         10  effective date until after the rules are

         11  promulgated.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Tim, or you want to, I do not care.

         16  I was just trying to move it along, but clearly that

         17  did not work.

         18                 MR. STAUNING:  Thank you, and good

         19  morning.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. STAUNING:  I am Tim Stauning,

         22  Regional President for Clear Channel Outdoor.

         23                 I want to thank the members of the

         24  Committee for giving us a few minutes to express our

         25  views on this topic, which has obviously been an

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  exhaustive expression of views over the last number

          3  of years.

          4                 I am not going to repeat what Scott

          5  says because a lot of what the views that he

          6  espoused, or echo the same views that I have, in

          7  that the Clear Channel has as it relates to the goal

          8  of the industry, or the goal of the legislation, and

          9  I have to ask the same question that Councilman

         10  Comrie and Councilman Gioia had asked, and that is;

         11  what is the goal of the legislation?

         12                 It the goal of the legislation is to

         13  remove signs, from an aesthetic perspective, I think

         14  as Scott points out, it misses badly because the

         15  legislation does not provide for the removal of

         16  signage.  It may provide for the enforcing of what

         17  copy is up, but significantly, not the removal of

         18  signage.

         19                 So, if that is the ultimate goal, to

         20  see the landscape be stripped of valuable signage,

         21  then I guess Planning needs to take a second look at

         22  how they address that topic.

         23                 We know it is complex, we know the

         24  landscape in the marketplace has been dramatically

         25  changed over the last five to six years, in terms of
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          2  ownership, in terms of how the business has

          3  blossomed into what I would call a very vital,

          4  important industry that makes significant

          5  contributions to the marketplace; not only for

          6  advertisers but from a job perspective, and also

          7  from a quality of life perspective, believe it or

          8  not.

          9                 Last but not least, I would just echo

         10  that in the event that this legislation continues

         11  down the path, that the effective date must be

         12  delayed until rules are promulgated.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you, and by

         15  the way, I would echo your sentiments.

         16                 This industry has been a very vital

         17  part of the City of New York.  So, I just wanted to

         18  make sure everyone here understood.  I mean, we have

         19  been working together now for three and a half

         20  years.  I think since the day I got elected, I met

         21  everybody here, and it really has been my pleasure

         22  to work with so many of you in the room.

         23                 So, thank you.

         24                 Paul.

         25                 MR. COLLINS:  Hi, how are you?
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          2                 Paul Collins with the Sheet Metal

          3  Workers - Local 137.

          4                 In answer to Councilman Comrie's

          5  comments, the Local 137 has suffered tremendously

          6  since this legislation has been put forward, and we

          7  have lost quite a few membership, besides the

          8  economy but especially in the building of outdoor

          9  signs.

         10                 The problem I see with this

         11  legislation now, and I know that the Buildings

         12  Department was just here, and I have nothing bad to

         13  say about the Buildings Department.  I think

         14  Patricia Lancaster has done a tremendous job so far

         15  with that department.  It is just a hard department

         16  to run, and there is a lot of things that are very

         17  difficult to manage in that area.

         18                 I must say that I do not believe that

         19  the Buildings Department will be able to enforce it.

         20  I will show you a classic example.

         21                 Just yesterday on 19th Street in

         22  Brooklyn, they were putting up a billboard, they

         23  were putting up the billboard, they had some permits

         24  but the permits were very questionable.  That

         25  billboard, they sent two inspectors to, the
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          2  inspectors determined that being that the paperwork

          3  looks right, they left and said it is fine.

          4                 Now, the reason I say this to you is

          5  because I represent the whole sign industry, not

          6  only the advertising part of it.  Since 1967, I

          7  believe, there are laws on the books that say

          8  `a person must have a permit to put a sign up, and

          9  it must be installed by a licensed sign hanger.'

         10                 What happens is through these

         11  expediters, I believe, that is happening, and I do

         12  not blame the Buildings Department in this because I

         13  believe they fraudulently put in license numbers

         14  there, and legitimate numbers of legitimate people.

         15  I believe that most of the people in this room today

         16  are pretty forthright, and they will be the one's

         17  that are damaged.

         18                 The people I am concerned about is

         19  that right now, in the City, when they put up these

         20  signs, they file the permit, the permit has the

         21  license of a legitimate person on it.  The person

         22  doing the work is not that legitimate person.  It is

         23  a big problem for us in the sign industry, and I

         24  have been talking to the Buildings Department for

         25  it, and trying to work with them to try to find a
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          2  way.  And I do not blame the Buildings Department

          3  because they look at the paperwork, all the numbers

          4  match up, all the lines match up correctly.  This is

          5  a big problem, and I do not believe- I think that

          6  this is going to be a problem, and the Buildings

          7  Department enforcement of this law, and there again,

          8  I have lost many a jobs over this, and I am really

          9  hurting for work right now, and maybe with the bus

         10  shelters that are coming out and different things, I

         11  am hoping that we will pick up, and I have lost over

         12  270 members.  And when I say I lost them, they do

         13  not stay in New York City.  They move to other parts

         14  of this country.

         15                 I just saw yesterday that we are

         16  like, I do not know, the fastest growing city as far

         17  as immigration, people coming into here from foreign

         18  countries, but people are leaving the City rapidly

         19  also, and they are leaving good jobs.  And by they

         20  way, the people in this room pay a hefty price and

         21  allow a person to work and live in dignity because

         22  of the amount of money that is paid.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you,

         25  gentlemen.
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          2                 Thank you very much, Paul Whitby.

          3                 Just for the record, by the way, Mr.

          4  Collins is from the Sheet Metal Workers.  Tim

          5  Stauning was from Clear Channel. Scott Goldsmith is

          6  from Titan Outdoor Industry, or LLC.  Mr. Whitby is

          7  from Van Wagner, it is an outdoor advertising

          8  company.

          9                 Mr. Whitby, thank you.

         10                 MR. WHITBY:  Good morning, I am Paul

         11  Whitby.  I am General Counsel at Van Wagner

         12  Communications.  We are a large, privately held,

         13  outdoor advertising company, predominantly in New

         14  York City.

         15                 After hearing some of the comments

         16  over the last few minutes, and questions of the

         17  Council, I am going to give some broad comments

         18  before I go into the purpose for which I really

         19  came, which is a few technical comments on the

         20  legislation.

         21                 Broadly speaking, I would like to

         22  discuss these signs we are characterizing as

         23  illegal.  Technically, most of them have permits,

         24  and are not being used in accordance with the

         25  permits.  It is our estimation, and we have a pretty
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          2  good run on this, that there are over 300 such signs

          3  on the arterial highways in New York City.  Those

          4  signs, we estimate generate approximately $40

          5  million in revenue.  It is the view of our company

          6  that if those signs come down, or even if their copy

          7  is changed to some eleemosynary purpose, that that

          8  $40 million will end up moving to other areas of

          9  outdoor in New York City.

         10                 The City of New York participates in

         11  most other areas of outdoor.  They participate in

         12  the telephone kiosks.  The participate, indirectly,

         13  in buses, in subways, in urban panels, and on

         14  shelters.

         15                 If even 25 percent of that money

         16  ended up moving into these, the City would end up

         17  with billions and millions of dollars of direct

         18  money.  This is not imaginary money, it is actually

         19  revenues to the City that are being foregone by the

         20  City by virtue of the fact the money is being placed

         21  on illegal boards.

         22                 Furthermore, quite frankly, as a

         23  company that has built most of their signage in the

         24  last seven or eight years, we feel like we are at a

         25  bit of a disadvantage when we compete with illegal
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          2  signs because we try to work so hard with the City

          3  on developing legal signage, such as the telephone

          4  kiosks that we manage.

          5                 So, there is not only a aesthetic

          6  interest in this city in removing these signs that

          7  are not being used for their stated purpose, but

          8  there is also a real economic reason too.

          9                 I would now like to address a couple

         10  of small issues in the legislation itself just so

         11  that the panel has an idea of some of the small

         12  print that we have focused on.

         13                 First of all, there is an exception

         14  in this legislation for signs over 200 feet.  I

         15  understand the purposes of that.  I do think,

         16  however, that the language could be clarified to

         17  make it clear that is for permitted signs of under

         18  200 feet because I am afraid, otherwise, that we

         19  have created a loophole there.

         20                 Secondly, the Department has now

         21  added a variation of the criteria that the

         22  Department has to look at in terms of granting

         23  permits for the signs.

         24                 There are three criteria; one is an

         25  architects or engineers certificate, a copy of a
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          2  proof of certification from the company, and a

          3  Department opinion.

          4                 We think that you are correct in

          5  having the opinion because this allows companies to

          6  go to the City and approach them with incomplete

          7  paperwork.  I think that it actually dovetails with

          8  what Phyllis Arnold was urging rather than to be

          9  contradictory to it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Do you have

         11  written testimony?

         12                 MR. WHITBY:  I actually submitted a

         13  letter to you and to your Chief of Staff outlining

         14  the technical points that I have raised here.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Okay, I appreciate

         16  it.  I feel like I probably should give you more

         17  time, just because there is one of you, and there

         18  are three of everybody else but, I think we are

         19  fine, and I think that if you give us the stuff in

         20  writing that would be helpful as well.

         21                 MR. WHITBY:  Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I appreciate your

         23  comments.

         24                 Any questions?

         25                 Councilman Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 That last technical point, can you

          5  say it again? You want to make sure that they have

          6  three different sign- offs first?

          7                 MR. WHITBY:  No, not at all.  The

          8  language and the legislation is now proposed with

          9  the most current changes, is written in Part 5 with

         10  three sub- parts; A, B, and C.  First of all, it is

         11  not clear to me if it means A or B or C, and the new

         12  C part is this, an opinion from the Department,

         13  which I think answered an issue from the industry

         14  of, "hey listen, we know we have a legal sign,

         15  because it was built 40 years ago, and therefore

         16  would have been a legal sign but we cannot find all

         17  of the paperwork."  I think it allows a way to go to

         18  the Department and get that cleared. I understand

         19  that Ms. Arnold said they want to do this through

         20  rulemaking.  It strikes me that this sentence in the

         21  legislation makes it very clear that they have the

         22  right to do that, and I would encourage you to keep

         23  it.  I think it was actually a good idea.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  So you think

         25  it is okay for the Buildings Department to have
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          2  total autonomy over where the signs go, without

          3  having any kind of give and take from the industry

          4  or the people that are affected by it?

          5                 MR. WHITBY:  I do not think that that

          6  is the issue or the point of this particular

          7  provision in the legislation.  What it would relate

          8  to- say we were operating a sign that was built in

          9  1965, it was near a highway that because of the

         10  legislation passed in the end of the 60's, and early

         11  70's, became if you will, a grandfathered sign, but

         12  nobody ever went back to Buildings and said, "give

         13  me the permit that says it is a grandfathered sign",

         14  but it nevertheless has the authority to be one.

         15  That paperwork does not exist, the building has

         16  changed hands two or three times, the sign company

         17  has changed hands, this would allow the Department

         18  if you made a presentment to it, to give an opinion

         19  saying, "you know what, you are right, the old

         20  paperwork is not there but we agree with you.  You

         21  have given us other documentary evidence, and we

         22  support your view that that is a legal sign."

         23                 So, I think it is actually helpful to

         24  the legislation.  I was glad to see that it was

         25  placed in there.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Thank you.  I

          3  know you have been around for a while, I mean, just

          4  involved in this issue.

          5                 Do you know how many signs would have

          6  to come down?            You said there were 300

          7  arterial signs with $40 million in revenue--.

          8                 MR. WHITBY:  Three hundred.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, all

         10  300 would have to come down?

         11                 MR. WHITBY:  I mean, I think that

         12  there- we estimate that there are at least 300 signs

         13  that, forget signs that do not have permits at all,

         14  which everybody agrees should not be there, but we

         15  estimate on the arterial highways that there are 300

         16  or more signs that are being used contrary to the

         17  stated provisions of their permit.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, and do

         19  you think that those 300 signs are safety hazards?

         20                 MR. WHITBY:  Personally, you know I

         21  heard people- members of the council discussing

         22  this.  I have not ever really seen not only in New

         23  York, but elsewhere where safety is really an issue

         24  with signs where the copy does not change.

         25                 I think where you have these new
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          2  videos and things like that, that has become a

          3  distraction and there has been some clear evidence

          4  of that, but not on simply flex- space that tongue

          5  up, it is just aesthetically somewhat displeasing

          6  with the aggregate on it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, and how

          8  many of those signs are Van Wagner signs, the 300?

          9                 MR. WHITBY:  Of those 300, very, very

         10  few, and we are prepared to take them down.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I just

         12  wondered, I could not help but ask that question.

         13                 MR. WHITBY:  I think my comments in

         14  the

         15  beginning--.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  No, I mean

         17  that was just my devilish side coming out, I am

         18  sorry.

         19                 Because you said something else that

         20  piped my curiosity that the $40 million, you believe

         21  most of that revenue would move to other public

         22  signage opportunities, the kiosks, the subways, and

         23  everything else.

         24                 MR. WHITBY:  Generally, the way

         25  outdoor works is that an advertiser has a budget for
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          2  outdoor for a particular campaign or for a

          3  particular promotion.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes.

          5                 MR. WHITBY:  And it then gets

          6  allocated into various type of outdoor within the

          7  local campaign area.  And if there are not

          8  billboards available because they have been sold

          9  out, they tend to move into kiosks and into shelters

         10  and things, which generally speaking have higher

         11  vacancy rates than the billboards.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.

         13                 MR. WHITBY:  So, I think it is a

         14  logical and expected root that the money will be

         15  channeled into these other things, most all of which

         16  the City has an interest in.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  But you would

         18  agree that a reason that people use arterials is

         19  because probably the median income of the people

         20  that are driving in is much more prone to buying a

         21  product that are on those signs?

         22                 MR. WHITBY:  Oh, there is a clear

         23  reason that people buy highway signs.  They are

         24  prominent, they hit a clear demographic market, but

         25  also those markets are reached, for instance, with
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          2  bus shelters and with telephone kiosks and other

          3  things because once the people park their car in the

          4  City, they are out on the streets, and the

          5  advertisers buy those other media as well.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:   Yes, okay.

          7  I want to thank you for your insight on the issue.

          8                 I cannot say I agree with everything

          9  but I appreciate your coming by.

         10                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.

         12                 Mr. Whitby, one question, final

         13  question.

         14                 The 300 signs, and we are going to

         15  get the exact numbers from Buildings--.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes, I think

         17  I heard that number from the industry.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Yes, I have heard

         19  it too, but what you are saying is that they are not

         20  one's that do not have permits.  You are saying that

         21  they are one's that have permits for business

         22  affiliates and have switched it to advertising, is

         23  that basically what you are saying?

         24                 MR. WHITBY:  Yes, they were put up

         25  for Joe's Auto Body, and they now read Toyota.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  So technically or

          3  theoretically, once this provision gets put into

          4  place, they could go back to business affiliates

          5  signs, technically?

          6                 MR. WHITBY:  That is really the hob-

          7  goblin of all of this, is that they could put up the

          8  sign again that says Joe's Auto Mechanics, and try

          9  to wait the City out.  I mean that is clearly the

         10  issue but I think to some extent you have to do this

         11  in steps, and total exoneration, I am not

         12  necessarily sure is the right thing.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  And your theory is

         14  that if I am Coca Cola, and I am given $40 million

         15  or $50 million to spend on advertising in the City

         16  of New York, right now I may use a percentage of

         17  that to go on their arterials, but once I am told I

         18  can no longer advertise on those arterials, it is

         19  your theory that they will go somewhere else?

         20                 MR. WHITBY:  Yes, there still will be

         21  a lot of legal signs on the arterials--.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  There will still

         23  be $50 million?

         24                 MR. WHITBY: -- there will just be

         25  fewer total signs, and it is our belief that when
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          2  the billboard- I mean, we have seen it.  We have

          3  seen when billboards get filled up, that more money

          4  goes into street furniture, and we see it all the

          5  time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.

          7                 MR. WHITBY:  You bet.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Councilman Vann

          9  can we --

         10                 I think we are done with you.

         11                 MR. WHITBY:  Are you done with me?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you very

         13  much, I am done with this witness.

         14                 Thanks.

         15                 All right, we are going to close the

         16  hearing on billboards, and Councilman Vann how do

         17  you vote in the Land Use Committee?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  How did you

         19  vote, Madam Chair?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I voted aye.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  I vote nay, no,

         22  no, no.

         23                 I vote aye.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you,

         25  Councilman, very much.
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          2                 Sorry I did not call you earlier.

          3                 Ladies and gentlemen, this will be on

          4  the March 16th calendar.

          5                 We appreciate everyone coming down,

          6  and once again, I cannot reiterate enough, we have

          7  been working very hard on this issue for a lot of

          8  years, and I thank all of you for your involvement.

          9                 (Hearing concluded 11:20 a.m.)
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